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· Recovery College   -
Briefing and Soft Market Testing Questionnaire



This briefing and questionnaire is part of a soft market testing exercise relating to the potential tendering of elements of the South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust (SWLSTG) Recovery College.

The document is intended for use by organisations interested in participating in a possible future procurement process to provide elements (i.e. courses) of the SWLSTG Recovery College.  

The purpose of this soft market testing exercise is to establish whether there is sufficient interest in the market for the delivery of certain Recovery College courses, to inform any subsequent commissioning and procurement process and associated terms and conditions of contract.

We are seeking written responses to the questions set out in the Questionnaire (there is no obligation to answer all questions; no scoring will take place; all answers are for information purposes only).

This questionnaire runs concurrently with a market engagement event to be held on 23rd May 2019 10.30-12.30 which will provide further detail of the proposed service. Attendance is not in any way mandatory but face to face engagement would of course assist the Trust in reaching a decision and framing any subsequent tender requirements. 

[bookmark: _Toc220660637]Market warming event
Will be held on the 23rd May 2019 10.30am – 12.30pm in Conference Room G.  See below for full address:

Conference Room G
Conference Centre
Springfield Hospital
61 Glenburnie Road
London SW17 7DJ


Confidentiality
All information included in this questionnaire is confidential and will only be used for the purposes as set out. 



A) Background

What is a Recovery College and what do they deliver?
Recovery Colleges provide information, self-management education, resources and skills.  Through an educational approach they complement traditional treatment and interventions in mental health care. Educating people about their conditions and supporting self-management are important components of NICE clinical guidelines and are effective ways to promote empowerment.

The educational approach focuses on developing people’s strengths, and enabling them to understand their challenges and how they can best manage these, in order to pursue their aspirations. They facilitate the learning of skills that promote recovery and underpin greater confidence and the self-belief that come with recognising abilities and potential.  Recovery College uses a range of learning methods, including teaching and group work.

A key tenet of a Recovery College is the recognition that lived experience of mental health problems is at least as valuable as that of mental health practitioners, both to the individual journey of recovery and to the design and delivery of services.  Within the Recovery College, courses are co-produced and co-delivered by Mental Health Practitioners, and Peer Trainers (who have lived experience of mental health problems). The co-production between Mental Health Practitioners and Peers operates at every level and stage: from initial planning and development, to decisions about operation, curriculum and quality assurance.

Most Recovery Colleges are based in secondary care mental health providers with some in primary care settings. Most Recovery Colleges are open to anyone who is over 18 and currently accessing secondary care mental health services, and sometimes, IAPT (talking therapies) or primary care mental health services.

South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust Recovery College
South West London and St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust (SWLSTG) opened the UK’s first mental health Recovery College in 2010.  There are now approximately 85 Recovery Colleges across the UK.

SWLSTG’s Recovery College provides educational courses from 11 locations across the five boroughs of South West London – Wandsworth, Merton, Sutton, Kingston and Richmond.  There are a wide range of courses which fall under the three headings of: 

1. Understanding mental health conditions and treatment
2. Rebuilding your life with a mental health condition
3. Developing skills

Please see the Trust’s website for courses that are currently available:
[bookmark: _GoBack] https://www.swlstg.nhs.uk/south-west-london-recovery-college

SWLSTG’s Recovery College is staffed by a Manager, Peer Trainers (people with lived experience of mental health conditions) and Mental Health Practitioner Trainers, and administrative support.

Who attends the SWLSTG’s Recovery College?
The Recovery College is open to anyone who is over 18 years and currently accessing secondary care mental health services and primary care mental health services provided by the Trust.  People can access the Recovery College for up to 12 months after being discharged from our services. The Recovery College is also open to families, carers and friends of service users and SWLSTG staff.

How many students are enrolled in the College and how many attend courses?
We currently have 5,320 students enrolled in the Recovery College. In the financial year 2018/19, a total of 957 students booked onto courses.  These 957 students booked a total of 3,361 sessions in that year.

What outcomes are achieved?
The Recovery College demonstrates both consistent and good outcomes across the three categories of student experience, student outcomes and health service usage.

The Recovery College is popular with service users, they engage people who often find traditional services unattractive and attendance rates are generally high.  In 2018/19, the Recovery College implemented a patient reported experience measure (PREM) and a patient reported outcome measure (PROM).

The PREM is used for every course whilst the PROM for courses that are most than one session in length.  Table 1 illustrates the PROM for the October – December 2018 Recovery College term:

Table 1: PROM for the October – December 2018 Recovery College term

	Hope, Agency, Opportunity PROM Questions
	Average score at the beginning of courses
	Average score at the end of courses
	%
Increase

	1. Do you believe that you can live well, and pursue your aspirations and goals?
	1.99
	2.50
	26%

	2. Do you have a sense of control over your life?
	1.94
	2.39
	23%

	3. Can you build a full and meaningful life of your choice, with opportunities to be part of wider society?
	1.95
	2.46
	26%

	4. Do your relationships with staff foster hope, agency and opportunity for recovery?
	2.76
	3.20
	16%


 
The Recovery College is also a cost effective service.  For every £1 invested in the Recovery College it delivers £1.24 of savings in occupied bed usage and contacts with our clinicians.




B) Briefing - what is the Trust keen to explore tendering? 

Delivery
Recovery College courses will continue, in the main, to be delivered by SWLSTG Recovery College in the future, however the Trust is seeking other external providers to provide recovery focused courses to supplement the existing courses delivered by SWLSTG Recovery College.  The principles of a Recovery College are as follows:
· Co-production in design and delivery
· Maximising self-management
· Courses being discursive rather than purely “taught” delivery
· Focusing on strengths    

Recovery College courses are delivered via the following categories:  

1. Understanding the experience of mental health problems and their treatment
2. Rebuilding your life with a mental health condition
3. Developing skills

The Trust is particularly interested in organisations that can provide courses that fit within categories 2 and 3 above. The Trust is keen to expand the range of courses available which draw on community partner’s skills and strengths, which could help students of the Recovery College to live well.

The co-design/production of courses between Peer Trainers and Practitioner Trainers is essential to the successful delivery of the future Recovery College model.  The Trust would expect successful external provider/s to work within the principles listed above, ensuring close working with the Recovery College to ensure these principles are achieved in the production and delivery of new courses.

The Trust is keen to hear what organisations can offer in terms of courses for adults of working age and also courses specific to older people, students, carers, and the families of those with mental health conditions.  The Trust is not looking to replicate what already exists in adult education or further education.

The Trust is keen to hear from individual organisations or from a group of organisations (working as a consortium, or as one lead organisation with sub-contractors) that may wish to work together. In the future it is envisaged the Recovery College core team and any contractors/sub-contractors will need to work collaboratively to ensure that courses are being delivered smoothly and in a timely fashion, targeting the needs and wishes of the people (services users (students), carers, families, friends and staff) attending the courses.  
 
Venue of courses
Courses must be delivered in venues within the five boroughs that the Trust serves - Wandsworth, Merton, Sutton, Kingston and Richmond.  Existing Trust venues can be used including the Recovery College base at Springfield.  The Trust is keen the that provision of courses is embedded within the community across the five boroughs where possible in accessible venues known to the local population.

Key results and Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)
The Trust would expect organisations providing courses to collect the following activity information:
· Number of courses provided
· Numbers of students booked to attend
· Number of students actually attending courses (including numbers who do not attend i.e. “DNA”)
· Demographics of students

The Trust would also expect the following information to be collected:
· Capture and recording of student outcomes including the PROM
· Structured feedback information on courses including the PREM
· Other qualitative student experience feedback 

The Trust is keen to ensure that a varied range of courses within community settings provide students the opportunity to rebuild their lives and develop skills.

What is the proposed contract length and indicative budget?
The Trust is keen to hear from organisations through the soft market testing questionnaire about what length of contract is preferable.  

It is anticipated that initially for one financial year approximately £45,000 would be available in total through a procurement process for external organisations to bid against. This may increase in future years if an organisation/organisations prove the model to be successful.


What is the indicative tender timescale, contract award and service commencement?
The Trust is currently in the market testing phase with respect to future delivery of Recovery College courses, and the market testing will inform any future procurement timescales.  However an example of an indicative timescale is outlined below should the Trust proceed for delivery to begin in the 2020/21 financial year.

	Task
	Timescale

	Publish tender
	Early September 2019

	Deadline of submission of tender
	Late September 2019

	Bidder presentation
	Early October 2019

	Preferred bidder notification
	Late November/early December 2019

	Contact Award
	December 2019

	Mobilisation
	January – March 2020

	Service commences
	1st April 2020





C) Soft market testing questionnaire

Objectives of the soft marketing exercise
The Trust is seeking to engage with organisations who deliver recovery focused courses to gain the perspective of the market, in shaping the commissioning and procurement plans for the delivery of Recovery College courses across the Trust area. Some of the specific objectives of this questionnaire are to:
· Establish whether there is sufficient interest in the market for the provision of Recovery College courses to work in collaboration with the core Recovery College team and other key partners and stakeholders through a method of  networking;
· Inform the overall development of the service specification 
· Inform the development of an appropriate and mutually beneficial terms and conditions of contract.

Please note that any queries or questions of clarification relating to this soft market testing questionnaire must be submitted to Miles Rinaldi by email: Miles.Rinaldi@swlstg.nhs.uk
 
Please note that the deadline for submission of questions is 5pm on Monday 20th May 2019.



Soft Market Testing Questionnaire
	
	Organisation details 

	Name of Organisation
	

	Contact name
	

	Contact job title
	

	Address



	

	Postcode
	

	Telephone
	

	Email
	



	How would you expect to bid for the project? 
	Indicate by checking the box

	Lead contractor
	□

	Lead contractor with sub-contractors
	□

	As a consortium
	□




	No.
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Please tell us about your organisation and your reasons for taking an interest in the intended delivery of Recovery College courses. 

(250 words max.)

	


	2
	Do you have expertise of providing or developing a range of services / courses that are relevant to the current requirements? If yes in what way? 

(250 words max.)

	


	3
	With respect to the services the Trust is looking for organisations to provide, would you be interested in providing these?  

(750 words max.)



	If yes:
· What key topics for courses could you offer?
· From what locations?
· What mode of delivery would you use?
· Is there a digital offer?


If no, please explain your reasoning for this including any potential barriers to delivery

	4
	What would be the minimum length of contract in order for your organisation to justify bidding?

(250 words max.)

	

	5
	What would the optimum contract length be?

(250 words max.)

	

	6
	Are you aware of examples of successes and/or innovations that the Trust should take account of as it seeks to commission delivery of new courses?

(250 words max.)

	

	7
	What major factors are likely to influence your interest in bidding for delivery of this service?

(250 words max.)

	

	8
	Is the contract value of interest?

(100 words max.)

	


	9
	Would you be happy to discuss any of your responses further, should the Trust have further questions?

(100 words max.)

	






END
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